
 

 
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk  

   

Finance and 
Corporate 
Services Select 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Councillor John Riley (Chairman) 
Councillor Wayne Bridges (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Kaushik Banerjee 
Councillor Kishan Bhatt 
Councillor Narinder Garg 
Councillor Raju Sansarpuri 
Councillor Stuart Mathers (Opposition Lead) 
 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 22 
NOVEMBER 2023 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape.  
Please contact us for further 
information.  
 

  
Published: Tuesday, 14 November 2023 

 Contact: Mark Braddock 
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 

 

Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use 
in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 

 



 

 

Terms of Reference 
 

Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee 
 

Remit 
 
To undertake the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the following 
Cabinet Member portfolio(s) and service areas: 
 

Cabinet Member Portfolios 
Leader of the Council 
Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 
Cabinet Member for Finance 

Relevant service areas 

Democratic Services 
Corporate Communications 
Corporate Finance 
Procurement 
Exchequer & Business Assurance Services 
ICT 
Legal Services 
Human Resources 
Business Administration 
Business Performance 
Customer Access 
Business Improvement Delivery (BID) 

 
Cross cutting topics 
 
This Committee will also act as lead select committee on the monitoring and 
review of the following cross-cutting topics: 
 
 ·         Resident Experience 
 
 



 

 

Agenda 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 8 
 

4 To confirm that the items of business marked as Part I will be 
considered in Public and that the items marked as Part II will be 
considered in Private 

 
 

5 Final Review Report - Procurement in Hillingdon; securing value for 
our residents 

9 - 30 
 

6 Members' Enquiries & Services Requests - follow up information from 
last meeting 

31 - 34 
 

7 Cabinet Forward Plan 35 - 42 
 

8 Work Programme 43 - 46 
 



 

 

Minutes 
 

 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
19 October 2023 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre 
 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors John Riley (Chairman), Wayne Bridges (Vice-Chairman), 
Kaushik Banerjee, Kishan Bhatt, Narinder Garg, Raju Sansarpuri and Stuart Mathers 
(Opposition Lead) 
 
LBH Officers Present: Mark Braddock (Democratic Services); Ian Anderson, James 
Lake, Marion Finney, James Wright 

 

30.     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 All Members were present. 
 

31.     DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2) 
 

 No interests were declared by Members present. 
 

32.     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 6 
SEPTEMBER 2023  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 The minutes of the last meeting held on 6 September 2023 were approved. 
 

33.     TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED AS PART I WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED AS PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 It was confirmed all matters were to be considered in public. 
 

34.     FIRST AID AWARENESS AND TRAINING, HEALTH AND SAFETY SERVICES  
(Agenda Item 6) 
 

 The Committee received a report, requested at the last meeting, regarding health and 
safety, specifically focusing on first aid awareness and training within the Council. 
 
James Wright, Manager of the Council's Health and Safety Team, outlined the services’ 
responsibilities, including maintaining health and safety management systems, 
collaborating with other departments, and delivering training programs. He explained 
their focus on first aid awareness and training within the Council and also for other 
organisations such as schools. 
 
Councillors raised their thoughts about the availability and visibility of first aid 
equipment, especially defibrillators as raised by the Chairman, in public areas and 
committee rooms. They stressed the importance of clear signage and awareness 
campaigns to ensure that staff, and third-party users of council buildings, were aware 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  

 

of the location of first aid equipment and how to use it effectively. 
 
Furthermore, Councillors sought clarification about the accessibility of the building for 
individuals with disabilities. They inquired about evacuation procedures and the 
availability of facilities like chairs for stairs. Councillor Mathers then discussed the need 
for consistent practices across different council sites and affiliated groups, highlighting 
the importance of standardised first aid arrangements. 
 
Councillor Bridges specifically asked about incidents being logged on Council premises 
and whether these incidents were reviewed to enhance safety measures. Mr Wright 
confirmed that all staff members are required to report incidents, which are then 
centrally monitored. Work-related incidents are closely monitored and analysed for 
trends to improve safety protocols. 
 
Councillor Bhatt inquired about mental health training courses, considering the rising 
prevalence of mental health issues in the workplace. Mr Wright mentioned that there 
was a separate team handling mental health first aid training. Although he was not 
directly involved, he acknowledged the availability of courses and ongoing discussions 
about mental health awareness training. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding the need for more obvious signage and information for 
visitors, particularly in areas where vulnerable individuals, like the homeless, seek 
assistance. Councillors emphasised the necessity of providing clear guidance on first 
aid arrangements to staff, visitors, and members of the public in various scenarios. 
 
A point was raised about the inconsistency in knowledge and equipment among staff 
members who were first aiders working from home versus those in the office. Mr Wright 
explained the ongoing efforts to monitor staff members' designated roles, even when 
working remotely, to ensure effective first aid coverage. 
 
The item concluded with a commitment to look into the points raised by the Committee. 
Councillors thanked Mr Wright for attending and acknowledged the importance of these 
discussions in enhancing safety protocols and agreed to revisit the topic at a future 
meeting to track progress. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee note the contents of the report and provide any comments to 
officers as appropriate. 
 

35.     TREASURY MANAGEMENT  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 The Committee received an overview of Treasury Management within the Council. 
James Lake, Director of Pensions, Treasury and Statutory Accounts explained the 
importance of treasury management as the backbone of the Council's finances. He 
explained that Treasury functions are regulated by statute and guidelines from public 
sector accounting body CIPFA.  
 
The overview highlighted several key points:  
 

1. Definition of Treasury Management: Treasury management involved overseeing 
the Council's bank accounts, cash flow monitoring, investment, borrowing, and 
risk management. It was essential for controlling the movement of millions of 

Page 2



  

 

pounds daily.  
 

2. Regulations and Practices: Treasury Management Practices are governed by 
CIPFA guidance. The Council follows specific codes of practice, focusing on risk 
management, security, liquidity, and yield when investing funds.  

 
3. Capital Financing Requirement (CFR): The concept of CFR was likened to a 

household mortgage, where the Council's need to borrow is offset by existing 
reserves and other funding sources. This ensured prudent borrowing and 
responsible financial management.  

 
4. Borrowing and Investments: The Council primarily borrowed from the 

Government's Public Works Loan Board due to its cost-effectiveness and 
flexibility. Investments were diversified but focused on secure and low-risk 
options. The Council employed a mix of fixed and variable rate debt to manage 
interest rate risks.  

 
5. Reporting and Monitoring: The treasury team conducted daily, weekly, and 

monthly reports to monitor the Council's financial position. These reports 
underwent multiple checks and approvals, ensuring careful decision-making and 
adherence to regulations.  

 
6. Challenges and Risks: Despite stringent regulations, Treasury management was 

not entirely risk-free. Economic fluctuations and unforeseen events could impact 
investments and borrowing decisions, requiring constant vigilance and prudent 
financial strategies.  

  
Mr Lake provides reassurances about the cautious approach taken by the Council in 
managing its finances, even within the established regulations and guidelines.  
  
Councillor Mathers asked about the agility and strategies employed to cushion 
unexpected changes, particularly regarding interest rates and inflation. He inquired 
about lessons learned from recent volatility and how it impacts local government 
treasury. Mr Lake explained the risk associated with inflation was the erosion of capital 
value and managing investment returns to offset higher inflation. He mentioned daily 
monitoring of cash flow, forecasting, and engagement with various departments to 
ensure cash flows are understood and funds are managed effectively.  
 
Councillor Banerjee inquired about active management of working capital, including 
accounts payable, accounts receivable, and inventory and asked if the Council actively 
interacted with departments to optimise working capital. Mr Lake clarified the minimal 
inventory the Council holds and explained standard payment procedures and 
highlighted the focus on ensuring the Council receives what was committed in terms of 
revenue. He advised that the Treasury function did not directly manage debt collection, 
but instead monitored actual cashflows with forecasts. Cashflow modelling would be 
adjusted where necessary.  
 
Councillor Bhatt raised questions about investment strategies considering economic 
volatility, the frequency of investment reviews, and the use of external advisors. Also, 
he inquired about the Council's approach to ethical and sustainable investing, 
especially concerning fossil fuels. Mr Lake explained the constant evaluation of market 
conditions, credit ratings, and buffer analysis to ensure safety in investments. He 
referred to the Council's focus on ethical investments, being predominantly in the 

Page 3



  

 

separate pensions arena. However, the Council does ensure treasury counterparties 
align with relevant ethical codes.  
 
Councillor Sansarpuri asked about the Council's policy on investing in foreign banks 
and whether there was a shift in strategy. Mr Lake explained that investing in foreign 
banks was currently not worth the risk due to low interest rates and increased credit 
risk and hence the preference for investing in the UK Government.  
 
Councillor Banerjee asked about the possibility of collaboration with other councils to 
obtain more favourable interest rates and discussed the challenges faced in such 
collaborations. Mr Lake discussed the challenges related to legal complexities and 
costs associated with collaborative ventures among local authorities.  
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Lake for the comprehensive report and the insightful 
discussion.   
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the Committee note the contents of the report and provide any comments to 
officers as appropriate.  
  
 

36.     UPDATE ON THE NEW MEMBER'S ENQUIRY PROCESS  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Ian Anderson, Complaints and Members’ Enquiries Manager, provided an update on 
the Members’ Enquiries system used by Councillors. He shared data indicating that 
between 1 November 2022 and 15 September 2023, there were a total of 3,872 
Members' Enquiries and 3,450 service requests. Out of these, 3,242 inquiries were 
from Councillors, while 630 were from Members of Parliament. Mr Anderson compared 
these figures to the previous year's data, highlighting a similar pattern. 
 
During the discussion, Mr Anderson outlined the ongoing efforts to improve the system. 
He explained the importance of making changes that were both cost-effective and 
valuable for the organisation. One significant proposal came from Councillor Bennett, 
who had presented icons designed for service requests. These icons aimed to simplify 
the identification of various types of issues, making it easier for Councillors to navigate 
and address residents' concerns. The Committee were asked to endorse them, 
recognising their potential to enhance user experience. 
 
Councillor Mathers expressed concerns about the system's effectiveness, particularly 
regarding the challenges faced by elected members in efficiently resolving residents' 
issues. He pointed out that councillors were spending significant amounts of time 
completing service requests on the current portal, often facing complexities and 
inefficiencies in the process. Councillor Mathers stressed the need for a more 
streamlined and user-friendly system, expressing worry that the current challenges 
might tarnish the Council's reputation. 
 
Councillor Riley intervened stating that a comprehensive review to address the issues 
raised during the meeting may be a way forward and acknowledged the frustration 
faced by councillors and agreed on the necessity of finding practical solutions to 
enhance the system's functionality.  
 
Councillor Mathers asked that it be put on the record that the Opposition felt that they 

Page 4



  

 

had not been able to fully discuss what they had wished to during the item that 
evening. 
 
The discussion continued with matters raised by other Committee Members.  
 
Councillor Banerjee sought information on the breakdown of specific issues over the 
years and whether there were recurring patterns. He questioned whether the council 
was addressing these problems strategically or merely plugging holes as they 
emerged. Mr Anderson acknowledged that certain issues like waste and housing 
consistently appeared in inquiries, and he agreed to provide detailed data for further 
analysis. 
 
The Chairman inquired about the progress of the sharing option, emphasising the need 
for a coordinated approach among councillors to avoid duplicate efforts. Mr Anderson 
explained that the functionality was under development, acknowledging the frustration 
faced by councillors in such situations. He mentioned the ongoing work to enhance 
search functionality, making it easier for councillors to identify and address specific 
inquiries within the system. 
 
Councillor Garg raised the issue of duplicates within wards and suggested that 
analysing this data could offer valuable insights. Mr Anderson agreed to explore this 
analysis further, indicating the willingness to provide the necessary information. 
 
Councillor Bridges sought clarification on sharing resident details in Member Enquiries, 
especially concerning GDPR regulations. He pointed out that similar platforms like Fix 
My Street allowed easy access to shared data and requested a review of this aspect 
for service requests. Mr Anderson acknowledged this as part of the system 
functionality. The Chairman indicated that this was a decision made at a more senior 
level to determine whether that progresses or not. Mr Anderson was thanked for his 
presence at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee: 
 

1) Note the contents of the report and provide any comments to officers as 
appropriate and; 

2) Endorses the change to the look and feel of the Service Request page by 
adding in icons set out in Appendix B. 

 

37.     REFERRAL FROM FULL COUNCIL: THE COUNCIL'S CONSULTATION 
ARRANGEMENTS  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

 The Committee discussed a referral from the Full Council regarding the Council’s 
consultation arrangements, focusing on how the Council engaged with diverse 
communities and ensured geographical parity. 
 
Marion Finney, Customer Engagement Manager, outlined the Council’s consultation 
arrangements. She mentioned that her team coordinated consultation events, 
engagement activities, and housing estate-based initiatives. Marion highlighted that 
some consultations were statutory, and they had specific demographic targets. She 
discussed the development of a resident engagement strategy and emphasised the 
importance of partnerships with other organisations. 

Page 5



  

 

 
The Chairman, Councillor Riley, stressed the need for a clear understanding of the 
target audience and the challenges in engaging various communities. He suggested 
analysing response rates and comparing them with similar demographics in 
neighbouring areas. He also proposed leveraging the Mayor's involvement to 
encourage participation in consultations. 
 
Councillor Bridges expressed concerns about low response rates in broader 
consultations, such as those related to the Budget, SEND strategy and Libraries. He 
requested a detailed report on previous consultations, including response rates and 
demographic data, to understand engagement trends better. 
 
Councillor Mathers emphasised the importance of reflecting on response quantity and 
demographics. He raised concerns about the lack of diverse voices in consultations 
and suggested exploring innovative approaches to encourage participation. 
 
Marion Finney responded, acknowledging the challenges and the consistent 
demographic patterns observed in responses. She highlighted efforts to adapt 
consultation methods, such as utilising digital platforms and diverse communication 
formats. She also welcomed feedback from Councillors to improve engagement 
strategies. 
 
The Chairman agreed with the points raised by Councillors and emphasized the role of 
Councillors in encouraging participation. The Committee supported a single meeting 
review on this at a subsequent meeting and the Chairman asked Councillors to submit 
their ideas and areas of interest so officers could draft a suitable report, to be 
discussed further. Marion Finney was thanked for her presence at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee: 
 

1. Note the contents of the report and provide any seek clarification from 
officers as appropriate. 

2. Agree to consider a single meeting review on the matter and for officers to 
prepare a report accordingly.  

 

38.     REVIEW FINDINGS - PROCUREMENT IN HILLINGDON: SECURING VALUE FOR 
OUR RESIDENTS  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 The Committee focused on the findings, conclusions, and recommendations regarding 
their review into Procurement. The Chairman expressed the importance of the 
practicality of the proposed recommendations. He stressed the need for suggestions 
that wouldn't just gather dust on a shelf but would be actively implemented by the 
Cabinet. One new recommendation put forward by the Chairman was the introduction 
of a mandatory review for contracts that had been running for a decade. This 
suggestion aimed to ensure that contracts, even ones with a successful history, 
underwent a rigorous evaluation to confirm their ongoing suitability and effectiveness. 
 
Councillor Mathers discussed supporting local businesses and potential barriers within 
contracts that could discourage local businesses from participating. Cllr Mathers 
highlighted the need for a conscious effort to remove these barriers, ensuring that local 
enterprises had equal opportunities in the procurement process. He also referenced 

Page 6



  

 

the impact of long-term contracts on the Council's goal of transitioning to Net Zero by 
2035.  
 
The management of subcontractors within contracts was raised. There was a call for 
consistency in how subcontractors were handled, including the importance of 
maintaining the quality of service for residents. The Committee recognised the 
complexity of managing contracts, especially those involving subcontractors, and ways 
to standardise practices across the Council. 
 
The Senior Democratic Services Manager advised a minor change to one 
recommendation to take into account Councillor Mathers’ point about reducing barriers 
to local businesses which was supported by the Committee. He also advised that a 
change to the Constitution would be required regarding the proposed 10-year contract 
review process by Cabinet. He proposed incorporating a monetary threshold to capture 
contracts of significant value, thereby preventing an overload of minor contracts 
flooding the Cabinet. The Chairman supported this idea and suggested Cabinet 
Member and Officer discussion to set the monetary limit.  
 
The Committee agreed the final recommendations, as amended, for their upcoming 
report to be presented to the Cabinet, aiming for a practical and effective support to the 
Council's procurement strategies going forward. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee: 
 

1) Agree the final findings, conclusions, and recommendations to Cabinet on 
their procurement review; and 
 

2) Delegate authority to the Democratic Services Officer, to complete the final 
review report for submission to Cabinet with the agreement of the 
Chairman, and in consultation with the Opposition Lead, noting that all 
Committee Members will also receive a copy for any final feedback (or 
bring back to the subsequent meeting for approval). 

 

39.     CABINET FORWARD PLAN  (Agenda Item 10) 
 

 The Committee noted the Cabinet Forward Plan. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee considers the Cabinet Forward Plan. 
 

40.     WORK PROGRAMME  (Agenda Item 11) 
 

 The Senior Democratic Services Manager presented the Committee's proposals for 
their work programme and next major review topics. The options discussed included 
HR practices, digital transformation and the user experience, particularly concerning 
Members' Enquiries. 
 
The Chairman expressed gratitude for the insights gained from the recent visit to the 
Contact Centre, explaining the importance of understanding digital communication. 
Councillor Mathers reiterated his thanks to the staff in the Contact Centre for his recent 

Page 7



  

 

visit with Councillor Garg. He highlighted the need to focus on the user experience 
related to digitalisation and Members' Enquiries. Others in the committee echoed these 
sentiments, agreeing that digital transformation, especially concerning Members' 
Enquiries, should be a priority due to the challenges faced. 
 
There was a consensus that the HR-related review could wait, given the HR 
department's clearer direction and the need to delve into digital transformation 
challenges. The Committee Members expressed the importance of understanding the 
current digital landscape, including the immediate plans and challenges faced. 
 
The Committee discussed the need to consult with the Council’s new Chief Digital and 
Information Officer and suggested outlining specific steps and potential ways to 
approach the review. The Chairman encouraged Members to share their thoughts and 
ideas with Democratic Services to further develop the plan for the digital transformation 
review. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee considers the Multi-Year Work Programme, agreed changes 
and that Resident/Member user experience in the Council’s digital journey 
should be explored as their next major review. 
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 9.28 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk on .  Circulation of 
these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 

 

Page 8



 

 
Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee – 22 November 2023   
Part I – Public    

PROCUREMENT REVIEW – FINAL REVIEW REPORT AGREEMENT 
 

Committee name  Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee 

   

Officer reporting  Mark Braddock – Democratic Services 

   

Papers with report  Final Review report  

 

Ward  All Wards 

 
HEADLINE 
 
Enclosed is the final report on the Select Committee’s review into Procurement in Hillingdon; 
securing value for our residents. This is for the Committee’s agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Committee consider the final review report and agree its submission to Cabinet.  
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
At its meeting on 6 September 2022, the Committee agreed the Terms of Reference of its major 
review into the Council’s approach to procurement. To progress the review effectively the 
Committee held a number of themed witness session with key Council officers and an external 
procurement expert, along with two Committee roundtable discussions, first to develop lines of 
enquiry and latterly, to firm up the Committee’s findings to present to Cabinet.  As the review 
phases are now complete, and recommendations finalised at the last meeting, the final report is 
attached for the Committee to consider and recommend to Cabinet. 
 
RESIDENT BENEFIT 
 
The aim of the review into the Procurement review was to secure value for money and wider 
community and local business benefits from the Council’s procurement activities.  
 
PERFORMANCE DATA 
 
As part of the review, performance monitoring was investigated in respect of contracts. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None at this stage. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The legislation surrounding procurement, including the Procurement Bill (now the new 
Procurement Act 2023) is out in the report. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Committee minutes 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=420


This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

   
 

Procurement in Hillingdon 
Securing value for our residents 

 
 
A review by the Finance and Corporate Services Select 
Committee 2022/23 
 
Councillors on the Committee: Councillor Riley (Chairman); Councillor Lewis (Vice-
Chairman 2022/23); Councillor Wayne Bridges (Vice-Chairman 2023/24);  
Councillor Banerjee; Councillor Bhatt; Councillor Garg; Councillor Mand; Councillor Sansarpuri 
(from October 2023); Councillor Mathers (Opposition Lead) 
 

 

 

Page 11



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 2 

 Contents 
 

 

 

 

 

 Page 

Chairman’s Foreword 3 

Background to the review 4 

Evidence and witness testimony 6 

The Committee’s Findings and Recommendations 15 

About the Review  18 

References 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 3 

 Chairman’s Foreword 
 

It is with great pleasure that I introduce this comprehensive 
review into "Procurement in Hillingdon: Securing value for our 
residents." The Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee 
has undertaken a rigorous and detailed examination of the 
procurement practices within the London Borough of Hillingdon. 
This report encapsulates findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, which are the result of sessions and 
consultations with key stakeholders. 

From the outset, our goal was to ensure that procurement 
processes in Hillingdon aligned with the Council's priorities and 
values, while delivering the best value for our residents.  We 
understood that the landscape was evolving, especially with the 
introduction of the Procurement Bill [now the Procurement Act 
2023], which aimed to simplify and make procurement more 

transparent. We recognised the unique opportunity this presented for Hillingdon to adapt 
and innovate. 

Our witness sessions provided us with the essential legal and regulatory context for our 
procurement operations and the transformative potential of the Procurement Bill. We 
focused on contract management, performance monitoring and how the Council was 
addressing financial challenges that may arise due to external factors such as inflation.  

We explored the core principle of value for money, the potential benefits of framework 
agreements, and the need for transparency in contractual arrangements for decision-
makers, in particular understanding why contracts were extended or “rolled-over” to the 
same supplier. Notwithstanding the importance of value-for-money, the Committee looked 
at how the Council could embrace a broader definition of "value", particularly in respect of 
local businesses and our net-zero ambitions.  

The Committee believe that its findings and recommendations, as presented herein, will 
help Cabinet continue to secure the best value services for our residents, whilst getting on 
the front foot for upcoming changes in procurement practices. 

I extend my gratitude to all the Committee Members, witnesses, and in particular the Head 
of Procurement, who have been instrumental in this review, and I hope that this report 
serves as a valuable guide for the future of procurement in Hillingdon.  

 
Councillor John Riley 

Chairman, Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee 

Page 13



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 4 

 Background to the review 
 

The Select Committee embarked on its review of procurement within Hillingdon Council following 
agreement of the topic at its meeting on 13 July 2022. The review was prompted by the realisation 
that the significant annual public sector expenditure in the UK, amounting to approximately £290 
billion, needed to be channelled cost-effectively to support broader public policy priorities and local 
services, compounded by new emerging procurement legislation and for local government, in 
particular, the ongoing need to address the budgetary pressures facing councils. The importance of 
procurement in supporting local economic growth, facilitating recovery from the Covid-19 
pandemic, and addressing the pressing issue of climate change were also factors considered by the 
Committee in initiating this review. 

National and Legislative Context 

The review took place against the backdrop of changing national and legislative factors. It 
considered the influence of the Procurement Bill 2022, which had been introduced in May 2022 and 
was progressing through Parliament. This bill aimed to reform the UK's public procurement regime, 
with a focus on value-for-money, competition, and transparency. It sought to create a simpler and 
more flexible commercial system while also opening up procurement opportunities for small 
businesses and local enterprises. 

National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS) 

The Committee considered how the National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS), issued by the 
Government in June 2021, played a pivotal role. It directed contracting authorities to consider 
national strategic priorities when engaging in procurement. These priorities focused on social 
value, commercial and procurement delivery, and skills and capability for all. 

National Procurement Strategy for Local Government 

The National Procurement Strategy for Local Government, launched in February 2018, provided 
recommendations related to leadership, commercial behaviour, and community benefits. It also 
identified enablers, such as talent development, the utilisation of digital technology, innovation, and 
change implementation though procurement. 

Climate Change Action Plan 

The Council's Strategic Climate Change Action Plan was a key focus during the review. It reflected 
the Council's commitment to address climate change and included specific goals related to 
procurement, including the achievement of contracting net carbon zero services by 2035. These 
goals were an integral part of the Council's strategy to combat climate change. 

The Procurement Team 

The review was supported largely by the Head of Procurement, Matthew Kelly, who played a key role 
in the review, providing insight and experience from his work in the public and private sectors. It was 
noted that the wider procurement team was made up of Category Managers, Assistant Category 
Managers, Buyers, and Procurement Officers.  

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 5 

External Challenges 

The review acknowledged the multifaceted challenges 
faced by local government procurement. These challenges 
included the increasing demand for services alongside 
limited resources, the enduring impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic, implications from Brexit, inflation, and the role of 
procurement in implementing local and national 
government policies related to carbon neutrality and social 
value. 

Planning the review 

At its meeting on 6 September 2022, the Committee agreed 
a scoping report and the Terms of Reference, setting out its 
objectives for the review. These were refined further to 
provide more reference to how Procurement was 
supporting, in particular local businesses. The Committee’s 
Terms of Reference are set out at the end of this report. 

To progress the review effectively in stages, Committee held a number of themed witness session 
with Council officers and an external procurement expert, along with two Committee roundtable 
discussions, first to develop lines of enquiry and latterly, to firm up the Committee’s findings to 
present to Cabinet.  

The Committee’s review timetable is set out below: 

 

Activity / Theme 
 

Meeting 

Scoping of the review  
 

6 September 2022 

National, local context and external influences 
 

20 October 2022 

Committee roundtable discussion  
(lines of enquiry) 
 

23 November 2022 

Procurement in Hillingdon, value-for-money and 
social value 
 

11 January 2023 

Effective management of contracts 
 

8 February 2023 

Strategic thinking around procurement  
 

19 April 2023 

Committee roundtable discussion  
(findings) 

19 October 2023 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 6 

Evidence & Witness Testimony 
 

National, local context and external influences 
The first primary witness sessions was on 20 October 2022. Matthew Kelly, Head of Procurement 
provided the Committee with an insightful overview of the legal and regulatory context within which 
Hillingdon's Procurement Team operates. To enhance the discussion, he was supported by Rebecca 
Rees, Partner and Head of Public Procurement at Trowers law firm. The central focus of this meeting 
was the Procurement Bill, which was crafted in response to the UK's exit from the European Union. 
The Bill was designed to harness the opportunities arising from Brexit and reform public 
procurement to be "quicker, simpler, and more transparent" while still adhering to international 
obligations. 
 
The Committee heard one of the notable aspects of the Procurement Bill, was its empowerment of 
authorities to establish their own policies. This included the creation of policies for smaller value 
'below threshold' contracts, which would allow a broader definition of value, encompassing factors 
such as local business, social considerations, and environmental impact. This shift toward a wider 
interpretation of 'value' was seen as a significant change, departing from the sole focus on the 
lowest initial cost in procurement decisions. 
 
However, it was acknowledged that these added powers would bring about increased administrative 
responsibilities due to the necessity for greater transparency and reporting. At the time of the 
meeting, the Procurement Bill was undergoing review and transitioning through Parliament, with 
amendments made based on feedback received during the consultation process. While there was 
no definitive date for its enactment, it was expected to receive Royal Assent in either Q1 or Q2 of 
2023, becoming effective in 2024. [Note: at the time of writing this review report, the Procurement 
Bill has since received Royal Assent]. The six-month implementation period after the Bill's 
enactment was recognised as a crucial phase to ensure adequate training and integration of new 
policies and processes. 

Although expectations for more significant changes in procurement policies post-Brexit were not 
fully realised, the Procurement Bill did offer an emphasis on innovation and flexibility. This enabled 
local authorities to design processes that aligned with Council priorities and market needs, with the 
inclusion of social responsibility within procurement practices. A cultural shift was anticipated for 
local authorities to fully embrace this new approach. 

The National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS), published in June 2021, was another significant 
topic discussed by the Committee. It outlined strategic priorities for contracting authorities, 
including supporting local businesses, addressing climate change, enhancing supplier diversity and 
innovation, and improving resilience. The NPPS also encouraged the development of policies and 
processes that ensure value-for-money and increased social value. 

In addition to the Procurement Bill and NPPS, the Council's own Orders were discussed. The 
Committee considered the possibility of updating these orders to better incorporate social value 
and environmental commitments. However, this would require a thoughtful approach, considering 
the unique procurement needs of various service areas and the core principle of value-for-money. 

Page 16



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 7 

During the meeting, the Committee engaged in a series of questions and discussions. They 
proposed exploring the inclusion of policies related to anti-child labour, conflict materials, and 
carbon usage/power consumption for manufacturers within the Procurement Bill. It was noted that 
many of these points were being considered through proposed amendments to the Procurement 
Bill. 

The Committee also inquired about Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for both the Council and its 
suppliers. It was explained that secondary legislation would provide more guidance on measuring 
performance and addressing poor performance. The current practice of agreeing on KPIs with 
suppliers at the outset, along with the potential for addressing performance issues, was discussed. 

The Committee sought clarification on whether the new Procurement Bill would grant local 
authorities powers to address financial issues they had no direct control over. The Bill was expected 
to include provisions for governing procurement in crisis situations, such as the Covid-19 pandemic, 
and allowed for flexibility within contracts to respond to external factors. 

 

Committee roundtable (lines of enquiry) 
On 23 November 2022, in the absence of witnesses, Committee Members sought instead to collect 
their thoughts and develop their lines of enquiry in preparation for future witness sessions. 

The Committee noted the various stages of the procurement process and expressed a strong 
interest in making the system more efficient, less time-consuming, and less repetitive. Members 
were eager to explore in future meetings innovative approaches that could streamline the Council’s 
procurement procedures. 

It was agreed that investigating alternative business models, the implications of the Procurement 
Bill, and the use of framework agreements could bring valuable insights and improvements to the 
current procurement practices. By exploring new avenues, the Committee felt it could enhance the 
procurement process for the benefit of Hillingdon and its residents. 

A notable point of discussion addressed the challenges of supporting and engaging with local small 
businesses on our procurement. In Northwood Hills, the establishment of a local Chambers of 
Commerce was highlighted as a promising development. This Chamber was seen as a vital resource 
for supporting local businesses through networking groups and events, providing them with 
valuable opportunities to grow and thrive in the community. 

Furthermore, the Committee expressed an interest in evaluating how the Council conducted 
procurement in collaboration with other local authorities. Whilst this practice has occurred, the 
potential for securing more favourable deals by pooling procurement efforts was seen as a 
promising avenue to explore in future meetings. This demonstrated a commitment to optimising 
procurement practices and achieving better value for the Borough. 

Members of the Committee also sought to gain a deeper understanding of how contracts were 
created within the supply chain and how the operations of suppliers contributed to the local 
economy. This emphasis on value creation and economic impact reflected a holistic approach to 
procurement, considering not only cost but also the broader benefits to the community. 

Page 17



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 8 

The Committee wished to further investigate establishing a clear definition for a local business 
within procurement arrangements, to facilitate the identification and support of businesses 
operating within Hillingdon, contributing to a more transparent and inclusive procurement process. 

 

Procurement in Hillingdon, value-for-money & social value 
This witness session took place on 11 January 2023, where the Committee heard from the Head of 
Procurement about the more operational aspects of the service, how procurement process works, 
how it helped the Council deliver value for money, particularly reflecting the broad scope of goods, 
works and services procured the Council. This scope entailed a large number of contracts across 
services, circa. 2,500 in total, ranging from small to large multi-million pound contracts. 
 
The Committee first gained a detailed understanding of the procurement cycle, which was divided 
into three distinct stages: 
 
1. Pre-Tender Stage 

During this stage, it was highlighted that the Procurement Team engaged in more strategic aspects, 
such as the delivery model, the route to the market, the desired outcomes, and the commercial 
model. 

The Committee was informed that the pre-tender process was a crucial stage that involved 
identifying the Council's needs and seeking the best possible commercial and quality outcomes. 
Officers actively engaged with provider markets to better understand how Hillingdon's requirements 
could be met. It was emphasised that this stage required officers to challenge existing practices, 
seek efficiencies, and understand cost drivers. 

Engagement with supplier markets allowed the Council to gain insights into how services were being 
delivered both within local government and externally. This engagement was seen as an opportunity 
to challenge existing methodologies, promoting innovation, and ensuring that the Council got the 
best value-for-money. 

Additionally, the pre-tender phase was supported by an in-depth analysis of spending to confirm the 
scope and benchmark against other similar services, ensuring that the chosen strategy was robust. 
A clear specification was considered paramount for guiding suppliers effectively through the 
subsequent phases of the procurement process, initially, by submitting their tenders for evaluation. 

2. Tender Evaluation Stage 

The tender evaluation stage was characterised by a more transactional process where officers 
assessed the ability of suppliers, who had tendered, to deliver the required goods, works, or services 
as per the specification. Tender bids were submitted by suppliers and evaluated based on 
predefined criteria that encompassed both price and quality considerations. This was where various 
due diligence processes were employed and also to ensure compliance with the Public Contract 
Regulations. Importantly, key areas considered within tenders being evaluated included governance 
and assurance, such as health and safety, insurance, and financial health of the contractors. 

Page 18



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 9 

Critically, the capability of suppliers was also evaluated, focusing on their experience with similar 
contracts, the competence of the teams engaged in contract delivery, capacity to meet Hillingdon's 
requirements, and method statements outlining how the supplier would deliver the contract. 
Further considerations at this stage were the financial and commercial aspects, such as the 
supplier's response to the pricing model.  

3. Post-Tender Stage 

This phase revolved around the management of contracts during the implementation and delivery 
stages to ensure that suppliers met the agreed contractual commitments. This would be a key focus 
for review by the Committee in their next witness session. 

 

Social value and local businesses 

The Committee explored the concept of social value, highlighting its importance in the tender 
process for extracting value-for-money. It was explained that the Council took a broad view of social 
value, seeking ways to enhance economic, social, and environmental well-being. Importantly, the 
London Borough of Hillingdon maintained flexibility in this regard, allowing for up to 10% of the 
overall evaluation of a tender to be allocated to social value aspects. This demonstrated the 
Council's commitment to achieving broader community benefits through its procurement practices. 

The discussion also covered the wish of local authorities to actively engage with their communities 
and support various initiatives, including community wealth building, levelling-up, achieving net 
carbon neutrality, creating jobs, and providing training opportunities. However, it was noted that 
while awarding contracts to local businesses could bring clear benefits, there were challenges to 
consider, including the size and engagement of local businesses and defining what constituted a 
local business. 

The Committee expressed a strong commitment to supporting and selecting small businesses as 
part of the tender process. However, concerns were raised regarding the barriers and 
disadvantages that small businesses might face when competing with larger corporate entities. 

To actively support local suppliers and prevent them from being disadvantaged in the tender 
process, it was noted that the Council had already undertaken several measures, including updating 
tender documents and actively identifying and seeking out local suppliers. Work was also in 
progress to develop web pages to support local businesses, provide assistance with pre-package 
requirements, and offer additional support for potential local organisations. Officers had attended 
conferences to engage with local businesses and highlight opportunities for second-tier providers. 
While there was no preferred bidder register, there remained a requirement for businesses to 
tender for contracts. 

In terms of the Council's goal to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2035 for its procured services, it 
was explained that this objective was integrated into the specification process, and further work in 
this area was recognised as an ongoing priority. 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 10 

Effective management of contracts 
This themed witness session took place on 8 February 2023, where the Committee discussed the 
management of contracts post contract award to ensure the supplier met agreed contractual 
commitments. Members heard from the Council’s Fleet Manager and Head of Parking Services who 
both manage significant Council contracts.  

Matthew Kelly, Head of Procurement, provided valuable insights into the crucial role of contract 
management within the broader procurement process. He emphasised that while contract 
management was an integral part of procurement, it was primarily carried out within specific 
service areas, with the Procurement Team offering support. 

The importance of strong contract management mechanisms in maximising performance, reducing 
risks, and preserving and enhancing the value that had been built into contracts during the tender 
stage was raised. It was explained that each contract was unique and required a tailored approach 
to management. Contracts ranged from transactional ones, like stationery supplies, to more 
strategic contracts, such as fleet maintenance and parking enforcement, making it essential to 
adapt management practices to each contract's needs. 

Roy Clark, the Council's Head of Parking Services, shared his experience managing the parking 
enforcement contract. He explained that this contract required 20-25 enforcement officers daily, 
responsible for managing parking regulations throughout the Borough. It was explained that beyond 
back-office processes, a range of legal aspects governed how the contract could be managed. 
Clarity on the desired outcomes was critical to ensure they were realistic and achievable. 

Members were informed about the specifics of the parking enforcement contract, which had been 
let for five years with an option to extend for an additional five years. Contract monitoring was an 
ongoing process, with regular meetings between the Council and the contractor to discuss both 
operational and strategic issues. The goal was to identify long-term improvements that would add 
value to residents. 

Members were informed that parking enforcement around schools, particularly during drop-off and 
pick-up times, remained a contentious issue. Some residents wanted stricter enforcement, while 
others preferred a lighter touch. Ensuring the safety of children attending these schools was a top 
priority, and action was taken accordingly. 

Steve Gunter, the Council's Fleet Manager, shared 
his insights into managing the supply of vehicles to 
various service areas. The Council's fleet 
comprised 295 vehicles, including vans and pool 
cars, with most owned rather than leased. 
Approximately 60 vehicles required operator 
licenses for carrying commercial products. 

A five-year fleet replacement program was in 
place, considering legislative changes such as the 
transition from the Low Emission Zone to the Ultra 
Low Emission Zone (ULEZ) across Greater London. 
However, it was noted that the move to electric 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 11 

vehicles by 2030 posed challenges, primarily due to the current prohibitive cost and the need for 
further infrastructure development, including charging points. 

Mr. Gunter also managed contracts related to vehicle maintenance, tire supply/maintenance, and 
fuel supply, providing specifications for the contracts. It was explained that when developing a 
contract specification, it was crucial to consult the end users to ensure the contract met their needs 
and aligned with the service's evolving requirements. 

The Committee then turned to the duration of contracts and whether it was better to maintain long-
term relationships with contractors or opt for shorter contracts to maintain competitive tension. 
The Head of Procurement pointed out that there was no one-size-fits-all answer. Longer-term 
contracts provided suppliers with confidence to invest in the contract, while shorter contracts 
could lead to reduced investment and increased administrative burden. The key was to ensure 
robust contract management, benchmarking, and introducing sanctions for poor performance. 

Performance monitoring 

Members raised the question of whether the Council had a template contract that included general 
service level agreements (SLAs) and key performance indicators (KPIs). It was explained that there 
was an opportunity to develop a common set of terms and conditions, but specific service areas, 
such as IT, construction, and social care, had their standard sets. Services were encouraged to 
include terms and conditions in their contracts, but performance targets had to be achievable. 
Managing thousands of supplier relationships at the Council, therefore, required a flexible approach. 

The Fleet Manager shared insights into the vehicle maintenance contract, which had a five-year 
term with an option for two additional years. The contract featured nine KPIs, some monitored 
monthly, and others quarterly. If targets weren't met, the contract allowed the Council to claim back 
certain values. He cited an example where a target to ensure that no more than 3% of the fleet was 
off-road at any one time had not been met, and a discussion with the contractor led to adjustments 
to reduce downtime. 

Members on the Committee questioned whether contract performance monitoring was too heavily 
reliant on relationships between suppliers and specific Council officers, and whether there were 
standardised procedures or processes to follow if the specific officer was unavailable. Members 
were assured that while strategic contracts like fleet maintenance and parking enforcement were 
critical, they didn't rest solely with individuals. However, it was proposed that a contract 
management framework could be developed for the Council, including a common set of "must-do" 
activities. If a contractor failed to meet performance targets, a plan would be put in place as the first 
step to rectify their performance. While damages could be sought also, actions taken would be 
reasonable and proportionate, varying significantly from contract to contract. It was stressed that 
effective communication with contractors was essential, as they played a strategic role in helping 
the Council achieve its corporate objectives and the delivery of many essential services to 
residents. 

Members were reassured that the Council didn't solely rely on contractors reporting on their own 
performance. In parking enforcement, for instance, it was noted that the contractor provided 
performance data, but officers had the capability to access the contractor's systems directly to 
obtain information.  

Page 21



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 12 

Supplier resilience and adaptability 

In scenarios where suppliers fail, it explained that while every contract was different, a typical 
feature was a three-month no-fault termination clause. It was expected to take about 9-12 months 
to exit some strategic contracts, making their success crucial. It was noted that "Evergreen 
contracts," those without a set end date, were typically more challenging to terminate. 

In terms of financial due diligence, it was noted that detailed procedures were in place to ensure 
suppliers' financial stability. Procurement officers collaborated with finance colleagues during the 
tender process to check this, and the impact of supplier failure on services was evaluated. The 
Council retained the flexibility to vary its contracts if Council policy changed or new legislation 
affected service provision, with up to 50% of the contract value allowed to be altered. 

The procurement team 

The Committee concluded the witness session with questions about procurement funding and the 
possibility of centralising contract management. It was clarified that procurement team was funded 
corporately, and any savings secured were reported to the Council's Corporate Management Team 
(CMT). Due to resource constraints, establishing a central team for contract management, either 
internally or externally, was not feasible. However, there was potential to develop a framework or 
set of principles to make contract management more consistent across the Council and free up time 
for the procurement team to focus on more added value and strategic activity. 

 

Strategic thinking around procurement 
Strategic activity took the theme for the final witness session on 19 April 2023, where the Head of 
Procurement and Committee Members discussed their thinking around the procurement and changes 
that could be made.  

The Committee expressed its commitment to ensuring value for money and high-value outcomes in 
the context of procurement. It was noted that there was an independent review of procurement also 
running concurrently with the Committee's review, which could also potentially enrich the 
Committee's work depending on timings.  

The Committee, along with the Head of Procurement explored some potential headline areas as part 
of its final deliberations as set out below: 

1. Contract Management - the importance of maximising the value extracted from contracts 
was stressed with the need to develop mechanisms to protect and enhance the value 
retained within contracts. 
 

2. Improved Planning – where there would be an extension in the planning horizon from the 
current 6 months to 12 months before a tender. This extended timeline was believed to lead 
to better outcomes. It was also seen as crucial for the Council's compliance with the 
upcoming Procurement Bill, expected to come into effect in early 2024. This legislation 
would require the Council to publish plans for contracts exceeding £2 million occurring within 
the next 18 months. 
 

Page 22



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 13 

3. Customer of Choice – the Committee welcomed the aspiration for Hillingdon to become a 
customer of choice, where companies actively sought to win contracts and engage with the 
Council. To achieve this, longer-term contracts and a partnership-oriented approach were 
more appropriate, enabling the local authority to build stronger relationships and enhance 
the value-for-money aspect. 

4. Engagement with Local Suppliers - balancing the social value provided by local suppliers with 
financial value was deemed a crucial objective. The Committee emphasised the need to 
enhance the participation of local suppliers in the procurement process. The importance of 
clearly defining terms like 'local' in the context of local suppliers and 'social value' were 
highlighted to avoid misunderstandings and inconsistencies. Some considerations 
suggested by Members, related to the effective use of subcontractors and collaborative work 
and training with smaller businesses. 
 

5. The Procurement Bill – this would introduce the concept of the "most advantageous tender" 
(as opposed to the most economically advantageous tender at present) which would allow 
other criteria such as environmental, social, and governance factors to be considered on par 
with financial aspects. To achieve better social value outcomes in the tender process, a 
corporate social value policy would need to be considered. With potentially six months to 
implement the Bill, upon enactment, the Committee felt that contractors would need to be 
brought up to speed to ensure compliance. The Committee highlighted the Council’s 
transition from tender evaluation based on 80% cost and 20% quality to a more balanced 
approach of 50% cost and 50% quality. This new approach introduced flexibility to drive the 
right outcomes and meet the requirements of the Bill, once enacted. 
 

6. Increased Strategic Focus - given the limitations of resources, the Committee stressed the 
importance of focusing on areas with the greatest procurement potential. The increased 
strategic focus was linked to determining the most effective delivery model, whether 
services should be managed internally or outsourced, along with the wider use of more 
strategic framework agreements which were often beneficial in providing a responsive and 
resilient service.  
 

7. Longer-Term Contracts - the benefits of long-term contracts were recognised, particularly 
in reducing administrative overhead and enhancing value through established relationships. 
The Committee suggested that benchmarking and value chain analysis should underpin 
these contracts. 
 

8. Maximising Benefit from Oracle Implementation - the introduction of a new financial system 
in early 2024 was viewed as an opportunity to enhance spend controls and reporting. This 
system presented a chance to tighten the financial aspects of procurement. 
 

9. Environmental Matters - the Committee underlined the alignment of procurement practices 
with the Council's commitment to carbon-zero by 2035 for procured services. It was 
acknowledged that electric vehicles were preferable, but their cost, especially for larger 
vehicles like refuse lorries, was often prohibitive. The Committee urged the integration of 
lower-cost carbon-saving opportunities wherever feasible financially. 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 14 

Committee roundtable (findings) 
On the 19 October 2023, the Committee met to review the past witness sessions, the evidence 
received and to focus on their findings, conclusions, and recommendations. The key context at this 
meeting was to agree practical recommendations that could be actively implemented by the 
Cabinet.  

The Chairman outlined a series of principles from which findings could be developed and tabled a 
set of draft recommendations, which the Committee discussed. These covered the following 
topics: 

• Value for Residents - the primary aim was to ensure that residents receive value-for-money 
from procurement practices. 
 

• Streamlined Procurement - streamlining service engagement with the procurement 
process empowers the Procurement Team to play a more strategic role and focus on the 
significant contracts with added value. 
 

• Efficiency and Responsiveness  - the adoption of framework contract systems across the 
Council's procurement process enhances efficiency and responsiveness. 
 

• Enhanced Transparency - providing decision-makers and scrutineers with a clear overview 
of contracts under their purview enhances informed decision-making and scrutiny.  
 

• Greater Scrutiny - updating Procurement Standing Orders for justification or checks on 
contract extensions and roll-overs to ensure greater scrutiny and competitiveness.  
 

• Local Business Engagement - engaging with local businesses through training, outreach, 
and collaboration, that could  promote a competitive and transparent environment for 
Council contracts. 

At the meeting, the Committee supported the Chairman’s additional suggestion for mandatory 
reviews for contracts that had been running for a decade or more, aimed to ensure that contracts, 
regardless of their historical success, underwent a rigorous evaluation to confirm their ongoing 
suitability and effectiveness. It was, however, recognised that having numerous contracts across 
various services could result in challenges related to transparency, competitiveness, and control. 
The sheer volume of contracts, estimated at around 2,500, could make it difficult to closely 
scrutinise and manage each one effectively, so the Committee sought to factor this into its 
recommendations by suggesting value limits. 

The Opposition Lead addressed the importance of supporting local businesses and identifying 
potential barriers within contracts that could discourage their participation, along with the 
management of subcontractors within contracts, where the Committee supported the call for 
consistency in how subcontractors were handled, highlighting the importance of maintaining 
service quality for residents. The Committee agreed to incorporate these salient points into their 
final recommendations, with the aim of presenting a practical and effective report to Cabinet to 
support the Council's procurement process and direction going forward. 

Page 24



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 15 

The Committee’s Findings 
 

Conclusions 
The Committee held a number of sessions on the topic of Council procurement, in order to establish 
several issues and principles.  Among these are, the nature of the Procurement process within the 
local authority sector and how this differs from the rest of the commercial world -  they are different 
as the aims and values are necessarily different - how procurement works within the Council and 
how it should better work for the Council as a whole and, therefore, by linkage for residents. 

What the Committee propose, therefore ,are some radical, practical and effective 
recommendations based on many hours of evidence and exploration on the topic.  The Committee 
have in mind the unnecessarily and profoundly complex practices and procedures in the 
Procurement Bill [now Act], designed to make procurement easier in the public sector but in many 
ways, it creates a more complex and less manageable landscape, however, there is flexibility. 

The Committee concluded that the Procurement Team (PT) in the Council was highly regarded, 
knowledgeable and able; they are led by high functioning committed Head of Service who has 
impressed the Committee and been of invaluable assistance in the review.  However, the PT are 
hampered by over -burden of work some of which is better shared with the Directorates and 
devolved even further to those who know what they need in their work using focused expertise to 
procure services relevant to individual departmental work.  The added value given by the PT is at 
present being supressed under a weight of day – day practices when they ought to be concentrating 
of the big ticket items and procurement policy, driving the procurement culture and effectiveness 
in the Council overall.  

The PT needs to be freed up to have the “space and time” to focus their expertise and bring the added 
value they possess to our biggest contracts and spends.  There should be a review of the level of 
service engagement in the procurement process and whether contracts up to certain value (e.g. 
£250k) should be driven by service areas, rather than the PT. This may involve some short term and 
intensive training for the Directorates, in order to equip them for their enhanced procurement role, 
bringing added competence to staff in those areas. 

The Committee see the value in considerable consolidation of contracting across services and that 
Directorates must review synergistic operations to observe common opportunities for 
procurement. In short, the Council has far too many contracts which makes close scrutiny, 
transparency, competitiveness and control unwieldy. In this regard, the Committee understand the 
total no. of contracts across all council departments and at all values - is circa. 2,500, thereby 
demonstrating the point made about volume and control. 

In addition to approved contract extensions, the Committee frequently observed the “roll -over” of 
contracts of all types; some small and specialised and others general.  Such roll-overs may mean 
that there has been no real procurement practice used in regard to the need or continuation of such 
contracts.  It may be that contract roll-overs make financial sense at a particular time, but the 
transparency of the extent of review and oversight with regard to them is a concern in order to 
obtain that which is most important, value-for-money for our Residents.  

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 16 

 

The Committee were driven by the principle of Value-for-Money (for our residents) as our guiding 
aim in this review.  Such roll-overs (or continuous direct awards) may mean that there has been little 
consideration of alternatives, of review and renewal, of need or appropriateness.  The Committee 
postulated, what does the Cabinet Member under whose portfolio these roll-overs arise know about 
all these issues, has there been time for Cabinet Member scrutiny?  

The Committee believe that the Council’s Procurement Standing Orders should be updated to 
ensure that relevant Cabinet Members are briefed before any formal decisions are made on 
extensions and roll-overs, and to consider a compulsory review date, initially suggested at 10 years, 
by which any very longstanding roll-overs with the same supplier continue. 

On which point, of Cabinet member portfolio knowledge, the Committee suggest that each Cabinet 
Member has a headline grid or list of all contracts under their portfolio over a certain and agreed 
value, so they understand the coverage of spend under their purview.  Similarly, Committee 
Chairman could also have this information in order to periodically review need, applicability, 
performance, relevance and competitiveness.          

 

Recommendations 
Based on the Committee’s findings and conclusions, the Committee propose the following 
recommendations to Cabinet, targeted around process; practical steps and local business 
engagement: 

Process 

1 That Cabinet request the Corporate Management Team (CMT) review the operating model 
and the level of service engagement with the procurement process to enable the PT to 
become more commercially and strategically advantageous, along with the streamlined 
process and training that may be required to upskill and enable staff in service areas. That 
CMT report to the Cabinet Member for Finance on their recommendation, noting that the 
select committee will review progress during 2024. 

2 The Committee believe the most significant improvement that will help shape our 
procurement for the future is to develop a framework contract culture. To initiate this, 
Cabinet instruct and support senior management reviews across all spending departments 
to seek synergy areas in contract creation or vertical and horizontal or combined contract 
provision. (e.g. some companies may have multi-function services that cut across different 
departmental service needs provision either in a linier or shaped connective form.  This aims 
to achieve cost savings and multi layered performance enhancement).   

3 To embed this, that Cabinet approve the adoption of Framework contract systems across 
the whole of the Council procurement process, so that implementation is quicker and easier 
especially in regard to response problems.  Such Framework establishment to be managed 
by the PT as part of their enhanced strategic role. 

Page 26



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 17 

Practical 

4 That Cabinet approve the creation of a register of all contracts over an agreed value for the 
examination of Cabinet Members, Senior Managers and Scrutiny Chairman.  This would be 
an easy to review overall register and calendar of all contracts over an agreed value for use 
by the Leader, Cabinet and other approved recipients updated yearly, or more frequently if 
needed.  Such a register should have straightforward detail; e.g. department, value, use, 
service provider and the whole timeline of contractual relationship / arrangements.  There 
is no or no easy to understand common site to tell at a glance who the Council is contracting 
with, how long we have been working with any particular company and the extent to which, 
based on longevity of association, the contracting relationship has been in place.   Good 
“business practice” suggests that Cabinet Members and CMT ought to have this information 
to hand.  In addition, it would be useful for Cabinet to understand how many contracts the 
Council lets or is engaged in over an agreed high monetary figure, (e.g. over £500k)   

5 That Cabinet recommend reviewing the Procurement Standing Orders on any requested 
contract extension or “roll -over” so that where competitive tenders are not proposed to be 
sought – or planned contract extensions are proposed, that the Cabinet Member for Finance 
and relevant Cabinet portfolio holder are briefed and in concurrence E.g. why is the contract 
arrangement being sought to be rolled over? What is preventing transparency or 
competitive tendering in a particular contract arena? *  

6 That the Procurement Standing Orders are updated so that longstanding contractual 
relationships with the same contractor that are to exceed 10 years in total length (whether 
through multiple extensions or roll-overs) require the formal approval of the Cabinet to 
continue. It is suggested this applies to those contracts at suitable annual financial value to 
be determined by the Cabinet Member for Finance (e.g. over £250k p.a.). * 

*These recommendations would require a minor change to the Council’s Procurement Standing Orders in the 
Constitution and thereby Council approval, if accepted by Cabinet. 

Local business engagement 

7 That Cabinet approve the establishment of training / information or other procurement 
enhancement assistance for local and wider external providers of all sizes in order to create 
a wide range of competitive areas for Council contracts.  

8 To emphasise our support for local businesses, we would encourage greater use and 
outreach of our local business knowledgebase to make contracting with the Council more 
understandable and attractive, and to hold appropriate trade and business events for such 
purposes. 

9 As an element of general commercial concern, the Committee were conscious of reducing 
the barriers to local businesses in applying for contracts, and of the important role of sub-
contractors, which include local companies, and therefore encourage that due attention is 
given to the commercial care, collaboration and engagement with sub-contractors by the 
main contractor appointed by the Council. 

Page 27



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 18 

About the review  
 

The following Terms of Reference were agreed by the Committee: 
 

1. To understand and review the legal and regulatory context that Hillingdon operates within 
including:  

a. Legal context including The Procurement Bill (as introduced in May 2022 and 
progressing through Parliament)  

b. The Council’s own Standing Orders  
c. National Procurement Policy Statement  

  
2. To understand and review how the Council delivers Value-for-Money through the 

Procurement process including:  
a. Understanding the need and writing specifications (including Net Carbon Zero and 

other Council priorities)  
b. Procurement strategies 
c. Understanding the market and engagement with providers (including Local Business)  
d. Drafting tender document 
e. Evaluation and awarding contracts 
f. Social Value in the Procurement process 

  
3. To understand and review how Officers manage contracts post award including:  

a. Contract Management processes within the Council 
b. How the council monitor and manage contracts to ensure ongoing value-for-money 

(including sub-contracting) 
c. Manging contracts in a high inflation environment 
d. Relationships with our suppliers  
e. Decisions on extending or retendering contracts 

 

The Committee received evidence from the following sources and witnesses: 

 

1. Matthew Kelly – Head of Procurement and Commissioning 
2. Rebecca Rees, Partner and Head of Public Procurement at Trowers law firm 
3. Roy Clark, the Council's Head of Parking Services, 
4. Steve Gunter, the Council's Fleet Manager 

 

 

 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 
 
Page 19 

References and evidence received 
 

 

HM Government 
2023 

Procurement Bill (Procurement Act 2023) – the new central legislative 
document that aims to reform public procurement in the UK, with a focus 
on value-for-money, competition, and transparency 
 

HM Government 
2021 

National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS)  outlines national 
strategic priorities for procurement, including social value, climate 
change, and supplier diversity 
 

London Borough of  
Hillingdon 2022 

Procurement Standing Orders (Chapter 19 of the Council’s Constitution) - 
a recommended document to update to for better scrutiny on long-term 
contracts and contract roll-overs, along with incorporating social value 
and environmental commitments. 
 

London Borough of  
Hillingdon 2022 
 

LBH Website - Procurement within Hillingdon 
– providing public information on the Council’s procurement activities 

HM Government 
2020 

Government Green paper – Transforming Public Procurement 
Proposals leading to the Procurement Bill and intended to shape the 
future of public procurement  
 

Local Government 
Association 2018 
 

National Procurement Strategy 2018 - toolkit to support delivery of 
the National Procurement Strategy for Local Government 

Local Government 
Association 2021 

National Procurement Strategy Diagnostic Report - examples of 
good practice and identifies key areas for improvement amongst 
councils 
 

Dumfries and Galloway 
Council 2020 

A review by their Finance, Procurement and Transformation Committee 
into procurement standing orders so they are robust and effective in 
today’s operating environment. 
 

Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council 2022 

Scrutiny Review: Procurement – who established a Task and Finish Group 
be instructed to examine procurement and contract management  
 

London Borough of Hillingdon 
2021 

How the Council Helps Local Small Businesses  - considered by the 
former Corporate, Finance and Property Select Committee – 24 
November 2021 
 

Trowers Law Firm Contributions from Trowers Law Firm and insights at witness sessions. 
 

 

 

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/transforming-public-procurement
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0521-national-procurement-policy-statement
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/2513/Council-constitution-and-delegations
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/9003/Procurement#:%7E:text=All%20procurement%20within%20the%20London,equal%20treatment%2C%20transparency%20and%20proportionality.
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/9003/Procurement#:%7E:text=All%20procurement%20within%20the%20London,equal%20treatment%2C%20transparency%20and%20proportionality.
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/green-paper-transforming-public-procurement
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/national-procurement-strategy-2018-toolkit
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/national-procurement-strategy-delivering-ambition-second-diagnostic-report
https://dumfriesgalloway.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s27226/FPT%20Committee%20Internal%20Review%20Cover%20Appendix%20FINAL.pdf
https://democracy.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=34472
https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/documents/s56098/Scoping%20Appendix%20A%20-%20How%20the%20Council%20Helps%20Local%20Small%20Businesses.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee – 22 November 2023   
Part I – Public    

MEMBER ENQUIRIES & SERVICE REQUESTS: FOLLOW-UP  
 

Committee name  Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee 

   

Officer reporting  Ian Anderson / Mark Braddock –  Democratic Services 

   

Papers with report  None 

 

Ward  All 

 

HEADLINES 
 

At the last meeting, the Committee asked for more specific information and breakdown on 
Members’ Enquiries and Service Requests received. Further updates may follow before or at the 
meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Committee note the information. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Number of MEs via Council Directorates 
 
Members sought more information on the breakdown of specific issues over the years and 
whether there were recurring patterns. Listed below is information setting out the areas where 
the highest number of Members Enquiries have been submitted over the past 5 years, including 
the number using the new system this year. 
  

Period Place 
Directorate 

Adult 
Services 

Children 
Services 

Finance 
Directorate 

Total 

2018/19 11,308 117 69 181 11,675 

2019/20 11,047 135 62 179 11,423 

2020/21 9,533 145 54 228 9,960 

2021/22 9,432 112 58 167 9,769 

2022/23 7,417 150 56 182 7,805 

  
 

 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Place Directorate Adult Services

Children Services Finance Directorate

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 
Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee – 22 November 2023   
Part I – Public    

 
MEs broken down by Services 
  

Service Area 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Waste 5,566 5,950 4,964 3,934 2,003 

Housing 1,239 1,288 1,269 976 1,021 

Anti-Social Behaviour 1,649 1,408 1,176 1,258 761 

Green Spaces 1,050 966 863 1,043 705 

Planning 1,235 978 827 1,255 361 

  
 

 
 
 
Members Enquiries – 27 November 2022 to November 2023 
  
In the new system, there is an “Other” category, which is 
chosen by Councillors for a number of reasons, but mainly 
when they are not sure which service it relates to, i.e. an 
enquiry with more than one service involved, if a team is not 
listed from the pick list. Officers are looking to refine this more 
so that it reduces the ‘other’ category. 
   
Overleaf is a breakdown of all Service Requests submitted 
from February 2023 to October 2023. 
  

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Waste Housing Anti-Social Behaviour Green Spaces Planning

Page 32



 
Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee – 22 November 2023   
Part I – Public    

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 22 November 2023 
Part I – Public  

CABINET FORWARD PLAN  
 

Committee name  Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee 

   

Officer reporting  Mark Braddock –  Democratic Services 

   

Papers with report  Appendix A – Latest Forward Plan 

 

Ward  As shown on the Forward Plan 

 

HEADLINES 
 

To monitor the Cabinet’s latest Forward Plan which sets out key decisions and other decisions to 
be taken by the Cabinet collectively and Cabinet Members individually over the coming year. The 
report sets out the actions available to the Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Committee considers the Cabinet Forward Plan. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is published monthly, usually around the first or second week of each 
month. It is a rolling document giving the required public notice of future key decisions to be taken. 
Should a later edition of the Forward Plan be published after this agenda has been circulated, 
Democratic Services will update the Committee on any new items or changes at the meeting. 
 
As part of its Terms of Reference, each Select Committee should consider the Forward Plan and, 
if it deems necessary, comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on the items listed which 
relate to services within its remit.  For reference, the Forward Plan helpfully details which Select 
Committee’s remit covers the relevant future decision item listed. 
 
The Select Committee’s monitoring role of the Forward Plan can be undertaken in a variety of 
ways, including both pre-decision and post-decision scrutiny of the items listed. The provision of 
advance information on future items listed (potentially also draft reports) to the Committee in 
advance will often depend upon a variety of factors including timing or feasibility, and ultimately 
any such request would rest with the relevant Cabinet Member to decide. However, the 2019 
Protocol on Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet Relations (part of the Hillingdon Constitution) does 
provide guidance to Cabinet Members to: 
 

 Actively support the provision of relevant Council information and other requests from the 
Committee as part of their work programme; 

 Where feasible, provide opportunities for committees to provide their input on forthcoming 
executive reports as set out in the Forward Plan to enable wider pre-decision scrutiny (in 
addition to those statutorily required to come before committees, i.e. policy framework 
documents – see para. below). 

 
As mentioned above, there is both a constitutional and statutory requirement for Select 
Committees to provide comments on the Cabinet’s draft budget and policy framework proposals 
after publication. These are automatically scheduled in advance to multi-year work programmes.

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 
Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 22 November 2023 
Part I – Public  

Therefore, in general, the Committee may consider the following actions on specific items listed on the Forward Plan: 
 

 Committee action When How 

1 To provide specific 
comments to be included in 
a future Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member report on matters 
within its remit. 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee wishes to 
provide its influence and views on a particular matter within the formal report to the 
Cabinet or Cabinet Member before the decision is made. 
 
This would usually be where the Committee has previously considered a draft report or 
the topic in detail, or where it considers it has sufficient information already to provide 
relevant comments to the decision-maker. 

These would go within the standard section in every 
Cabinet or Cabinet Member report called “Select 
Committee comments”. 
 
The Cabinet or Cabinet Member would then consider 
these as part of any decision they make. 

2 To request further 
information on future 
reports listed under its 
remit. 
 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee wishes to 
discover more about a matter within its remit that is listed on the Forward Plan. 
 
Whilst such advance information can be requested from officers, the Committee should 
note that information may or may not be available in advance due to various factors, 
including timescales or the status of the drafting of the report itself and the formulation of 
final recommendation(s). Ultimately, the provision of any information in advance would be 
a matter for the Cabinet Member to decide. 

This would be considered at a subsequent Select 
Committee meeting. Alternatively, information could 
be circulated outside the meeting if reporting 
timescales require this. 
 
Upon the provision of any information, the Select 
Committee may then decide to provide specific 
comments (as per 1 above). 

3 To request the Cabinet 
Member considers providing 
a draft of the report, if 
feasible, for the Select 
Committee to consider prior 
to it being considered 
formally for decision. 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee wishes to 
provide an early steer or help shape a future report to Cabinet, e.g., on a policy matter. 
 
Whilst not the default position, Select Committees do occasionally receive draft versions 
of Cabinet reports prior to their formal consideration. The provision of such draft reports in 
advance may depend upon different factors, e.g., the timings required for that decision. 
Ultimately any request to see a draft report early would need the approval of the relevant 
Cabinet Member. 

Democratic Services would contact the relevant 
Cabinet Member and Officer upon any such request. 
 
If agreed, the draft report would be considered at a 
subsequent Select Committee meeting to provide 
views and feedback to officers before they finalise it 
for the Cabinet or Cabinet Member. An opportunity 
to provide specific comments (as per 1 above) is 
also possible. 

4 To identify a forthcoming 
report that may merit a post-
decision review at a later 
Select Committee meeting 
 

As part of its post-decision scrutiny and broader reviewing role, this would be where the 
Select Committee may wish to monitor the implementation of a certain Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member decision listed/taken at a later stage, i.e., to review its effectiveness after a 
period of 6 months. 
 
The Committee should note that this is different to the use of the post-decision scrutiny 
‘call-in’ power which seeks to ask the Cabinet or Cabinet Member to formally re-consider 
a decision up to 5 working days after the decision notice has been issued. This is 
undertaken via the new Scrutiny Call-in App members of the relevant Select Committee. 

The Committee would add the matter to its multi-
year work programme after a suitable time has 
elapsed upon the decision expected to be made by 
the Cabinet or Cabinet Member.  
 
Relevant service areas may be best to advise on the 
most appropriate time to review the matter once the 
decision is made.  
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Protocol on Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet relations adopted by Council 12 September 2019 

 Scrutiny Call-in App 

P
age 36

https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/documents/s46033/190912%20-%2005%20-%20Report%20of%20Head%20of%20Dem%20Services.pdf
https://apps.powerapps.com/play/cbc62b47-53ef-479e-a6b6-56d461595a4a?tenantId=aaacb679-c381-48fb-b320-f9d581ee948f


Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

184 Device refresh Cabinet will consider the contract and capital release for the 
upcoming refresh of the Council's computer / laptop and 
related devices used across the organisation for work 
productivity to deliver services, access systems and 
importantly to collaborate, engage and communicate with 
residents and colleagues in a modern way.

N/A Cllr Douglas 
Mills - 
Corporate 
Services

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

Matthew 
Wallbridge / Dale 
Gordon

Private (3)

095 Revenues & Benefits 
Contract Award

The existing managed services contract within Revenues & 
Benefits expires in May 2024. This report to Cabinet seeks 
approval for new contracting arrangements beyond this date 
following a procurement exercise to be undertaken in March 
2023 and market engagement from October 2022.

N/A Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Iain Watters / 
Trudie Eldriny 

Private (3)

158 Counter-fraud and 
corporate related 
investigative policies 

Cabinet will consider a suite of policies for the next 3 years 
relating to the investigative framework used by the Council for 
counter-fraud related purposes. 

All  Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Alex Brown Public

161 Licences, Support 
and Maintenance for 
Geographic 
Information System 
(GIS) 

Cabinet will consider contract for the licences, support and 
maintenance of the Council's Geographic Information System 
(GIS) and an upgrade to the existing GIS planning plotter

N/A Cllr Douglas 
Mills - 
Corporate 
Services

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

Helen Vincent Private (3)

110a The Council's Budget -
Medium Term 
Financial Forecast 
2024/25 - 2028/29 
(BUDGET 
FRAMEWORK)

This report will set out the Medium Term Financial Forecast 
(MTFF), which includes the draft General Fund reserve budget 
and capital programme for 2023/24 for consultation, along with 
indicative projections for the following four years. This will also 
include the HRA rents for consideration.

All Proposed 
Full Council 
adoption - 22 
February 
2024

Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

All R - Andy Evans Public consultation 
through the Select 
Committee process 
and statutory 
consultation with 
businesses & 
ratepayers

Public

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 14 December 2023 (report deadline 27 November) 

P
age 37



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

SI  Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 11 January 2024 (report deadline 11 December 2023)

P
age 38



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

156 Occupational Health 
(OH) Services and 
Employee Assistance 
Programme (EAP) 
Contract Award

Cabinet will consider new contracting arrangements for 
Occupational Health (OH) and Employee Assistance 
Programme (EAP) services managed by HR.  These services 
are available to all Council employees and where applicable 
contractors, delivered by suitably qualified medical 
professionals including but not limited to; pre-employment 
health reviews, assessments for safety critical posts, in-service 
referrals as a result of accident/injury at work, referral to other 
specialist medical practitioners, medical advice for managers 
related to employee ill health, ill-health retirement and 
confidential employee support services.  Prevention, advice 
and trend forecasting is also provided to support and improve 
the health and productivity of the workforce.

All Cllr Douglas 
Mills

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

C - Suzie Horn Private (3)

110a The Council's Budget -
Medium Term 
Financial Forecast 
2024/25 - 2028/29 
(BUDGET 
FRAMEWORK)

Following consultation, this report will set out the Medium Term 
Financial Forecast (MTFF), which includes the draft General 
Fund reserve budget and capital programme for 2024/25 for 
consultation, along with indicative projections for the following 
four years. This will also include the HRA rents for 
consideration.

All Proposed 
Full Council 
adoption - 22 
February 
2024

Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council / Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance

All R - Andy Evans Public consultation 
through the Select 
Committee process 
and statutory 
consultation with 
businesses & 
ratepayers

Public

045 The Schools Budget 
2024/25

Cabinet will asked to agree the Schools Budget for the next 
financial year, following a recommendation from the Schools 
Forum.

All Cllr Susan 
O'Brien - 
Children, 
Families & 
Education / Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Coral Miller Schools Forum Public

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   CS - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC CS - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 15 February 2024 (report deadline 29 January)

P
age 39



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   CS - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position and other key financial 
decisions required. Cabinet will also consider the fees related 
to the summer activity offer for children.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC CS - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 21 March 2024 (report deadline 4 March)

P
age 40



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Minor Property 
Transactions

A regular report to Cabinet on minor property matters that may 
arise during the course of the year that require a Cabinet 
decision. These will relate to discounted leases to voluntary 
sector organisations and/or any easements, wayleaves and 
leases relating to utilities in order to support the Council's 
capital programmes and other such similar matters.

All Cllr Jonathan 
Bianco - 
Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

Property, 
Highways & 
Transport

P - James Raven Private (3)

SI Monthly Council 
Budget - monitoring 
report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting out in detail the 
Council’s revenue and capital position.

All Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services

R - Andy Evans Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 18 April 2024 (report deadline 1 April)

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee – 22 November 2023  
Part I - Public 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

Committee name  Finance and Corporate Services Select Committee 

   

Officer reporting  Mark Braddock – Democratic Services  

   

Papers with report  Appendix A – Work Programme 

 

Ward  All  

 

HEADLINES 
 
To enable the Committee to note future meeting dates and to forward plan its work for the current 

municipal year.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee considers the Multi-Year Work Programme attached and agrees any 
amendments. 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The Committee's meetings will start at 7pm and the witnesses attending each of the meetings 
may include representatives from external organisations, some of whom travel from outside of 
the Borough.  Forthcoming meeting dates are as follows:  
 

Meeting Date  Room 

11 January 2024 CR5 

8 February 2024 CR6 

5 March 2024 CR5 

17 April 2024 CR5 

 
Implications on related Council policies 
 
The role of the Select Committees is to make recommendations on service changes and 
improvements to the Cabinet, who are responsible for the Council’s policy and direction. 
 
How this report benefits Hillingdon residents 
 
Select Committees directly engage residents in shaping policy and recommendations and the 
Committees seek to improve the way the Council provides services to residents. 
 
 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Multi Year Work Programme 2022 - 2026
2024

November January February March April
22 11 8 5 17

Review A: Procurement in Hillingdon
Topic selection / scoping stage
Witness / evidence / consultation stage
Findings, conclusions and recommendations
Final review report agreement Final Report
Target Cabinet reporting

Review B: Council's consultation arrangements
Topic selection / scoping stage
Witness / evidence / consultation stage Witness
Findings, conclusions and recommendations Findings
Final review report agreement Report
Target Cabinet reporting

Regular service & performance monitoring
Quarterly Performance Monitoring (timeline TBC)
Mid year Budget Update X
Annual complaints & service update report 
Cabinet's budget proposals for next financial year X
Cabinet Forward Plan Monthly Monitoring X X X X X

One-off information items
Scrutiny Introduction (Democratic Services)
Policy Review Discussion & Guidance
Council Strategy 2022-2026 consultation
Update on the work of the Council's Counter Fraud Team
Update on the new Member's Enquiry Process
Human Resources - digitalisation of processes
Customer Service, Contact Centre & transition to digital 
Staff skills, learning and development
BID transformation work to deliver savings X
Treasury Management 
Update on the Member's Portal and New Member Enquiry Process
First Aid Awareness and Training
Resident/Member user experience in the Council’s digital journey (possible review) X

Past review delivery
Performance Monitoring & Reporting Review 2021/22 X

Finance & Corporate Services Select Committee

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Final Review Report - Procurement in Hillingdon; securing value for our residents
	Procurement Review 2022-23 Final Report

	6 Members' Enquiries & Services Requests - follow up information from last meeting
	7 Cabinet Forward Plan
	Forward Plan - Nov 2023 edition

	8 Work Programme
	Combined SC Multi-Year Work Programmes 2022-2026
	Finance & Corp Services SC



